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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ;.. .

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIAB) fﬁf ﬂL', i
ROME DIVISION

COMMON CAUSE / GEORGIA; )
LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS )
OF GEORGIA, INC.; THE )
CENTRAL PRESBYTERIAN )
OUTREACH AND ADVOCACY )
CENTER, INC.; GEORGIA )
ASSOCIATION OF BLACK ELECTED )
OFFICIALS, INC., THE NATIONAL )
ASSOCIATION FOR THE )
ADVANCEMENT OF COLORED )
PEOPLE (NAACP), INC., through its )
Georgia State Conference of Branches; )
GLORGIA LEGISLATIVE BLACK )
CAUCUS; CONCERNED BLACK )
CLERGY OF METROPOLITAN )
ATLANTA, INC,, the following )
qualified and registered voters )
under Georgia law: )
MR. TONY WATKINS )
MRS. CLARA WILLIAMS, )
) . Y
Plaintiffs, ) 4:05-Uy- 20y
)
) CIVILACTION 71~
) FILE NO.
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

V.

MS. EVON BILLUPS, Superintendent of
Elections for the Board of Elections and
Voter Registration for Floyd County and the
City of Rome, Georgia; MS. TRACY
BROWN, Superintendent of Elections of
Bartow County, Georgia; MR, GARY
PETTY, MS. MICHELLE HUDSON,

MS. AMANDA SPENCER, MR, RON
McKELVEY, AND MS. NINA
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CRAWFORD, members of the Board of )
Elections and Registration of Catoosa )
County, Georgia; JUDGE JOHN PAYNE, )
Superintendent of Elections of Chattooga )
County, Georgia; MS. SHEA HICKS, )
Superintendent of Elections for Gordon )
County, Georgia; MS. JENNIFER A. )
JOHNSON, Superintendent of Elections )
for Polk County, Georgia; MR. SAM )
LITTLE, Superintendent of Elections for )
Whitfield County, Georgia; individually )
and in their respective official capacities as )
superintendents or members of the )
elections boards in their individual )
counties, and as CLASS }
REPRESENTATIVES under Fed R.Civ.P. )
23(b)(1} and (b}(2) of a class consisting of )
all superintendents and members of city )
and county boards of elections )
throughout the State of Georgia; and )

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

HON. CATHY COX, individually and in
her official capacities as Secretary of State
of Georgia and Chair of the Georgia
Elections Board.

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

This is an action to have the Photo 1D requirement in the 2005 amendment
to O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417 (Act No. 53), declared unconstitutional both on its face
and as applied, and to cnjoin its enforcement on the ground that it imposes an

unauthorized, unnecessary and undue burden on the fundamental right to vote of
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hundreds of thousands of registered Georgia voters in violation of Art. IL, § I, ] II

of the Georgia Constitution, the Fourteenth and Twenty-Fourth Amendments to the

United States Constitution, the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.

§ 1971(a)(2)(A) and (2)(2)(B)), Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965

(42 U.S.C. § 1973(a)) and 42 U.8.C. §§ 1983 and 1988.

123008

1.

The Plaintiffs are:

(b)

(a) Common Cause / Georgia (“Common Cause”), a chapter of
Common Cause, Inc., a non-partisan citizen lobby organized as a rot-
{or-profit corporation under the [aws of the District of Columbia, and
devoted to electoral reform, ethics in government and to the protection
and preservation of the rights of all citizens to vote in naticnal, state
and local elections, including the education of voters about voting
rights and procedures;

the League of Women Voters of Georgia, Inc. (“the League™), a
non-partisan Georgia non-profit corporation founded in 1920 to
encourage the informed and active participation by citizens in

government at all levcls, including the protection of the right of all
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citizens to vote and the education of voters about voting rights and
procedures;

(c) The Central Presbyterian Outreach and Advocacy Center, Inc., a
Georgia non-profit corporation that provides support to people in
poverty including emergency services for basic human needs and
assistance in achieving self-sufficiency, including assisting
individuals in obtaining photo identification;

(d} Georgia Association of Black Elected Officials, Inc., an
unincorporated association of more than 700 elected officials
throughout the State of Georgia, and who regularly conduct election
campaigns and seek the votes of all registered, eligible voters. The
Georgia Association of Black Elected Officials also promotes voter
registration, education and participation, that preserves minority
voting rights, and fights to ensure that no qualified voters are turned
away on election day for failure to possess a photo identity card n
violation of their right to vote.

(e}  The National Association for the Advancement of Colored People
(NAACP), Inc., through its Georgia State Conference of Branches,

the nation’s oldest civil rights organization was formed in 1909 by a

12367 4 4
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(H)

(8)

multiracial group of activists. The NAACP has nationwide
membership including members and offices in Georgia. The NAACP
has advocated for the advancement and protection of voting rights for
minorities, and has, throughout its history, fought for access to the
hallot, for its members and others. It has also fought 1o ensure that
racial minorities, low income and economically disadvantaged
persons have access to the ballot box and the equal opportunity o
participate in the political process.

Georgia Legislative Black Caucus (“GLBC”) was formed in 1966
and consists of elected African-American members of the House and
Senate of the Georgia General Assembly. As elected representatives,
members of GLBC engage in election campatgns, seek the votes of
registered, eligible voters and also seek to make certain that the right
to vote of all eligible citizens are protected and that no eligible voters
are discouraged or prevented from voting on election day for failure to
possess a photo 1dentity card in violation of their right to vote.
Concerned Black Clergy of Metropolitan Atlanta, Inc., a non-
partisan, interfaith religious organization of mostly African-American

members and laity whose mission is to provide leadership, advocacy
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and service to the poor, the homeless, and the helpless in the

metropolitan Atlanta area, including ensuring that their rights as

citizens to full participation in the democratic process, including the
right to register and vote without undue interference.

(h)  The following plaintiffs, each of whom is a citizen of the State of
Georgia and duly qualified and registered under Georgia law to vote
in federal, state and local elections:

(i)  Mr. Tony Watkins, an African-American citizen and duly
qualified and registered voter residing in the City of Rome and
Floyd County, Georgia, who does not possess a (Georgia
driver’s license, passport or other form of government-issued
photo identity, and cannot readily obtain a Photo ID card from
the State Department of Driver Services; and

(11) Mrs. Clara Williams, an African-American citizen and duly
qualified and registered voter residing in the City of Atlanta and
Fulton County, Georgia, who does not possess a Georgia
driver’s license, passport or other form of government-issued

photo identity, and cannot readily obtain a Photo 1D card from
the State Department of Driver Services.

2.

The Defendants are:
(2)  The following defendants are sued individually and in their official
capacities as superintendents or members of their respective city or

county boards of elections and also as Class Representatives of a class
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of city and county election superintendents or members of city or

county election boards throughout the State of Georgia as provided by

Fed.R.Civ.P. Rule 23(b)(1) & b(2):

)

(1)

(iii)

Ms. Evon Billups, who is sued individually and in her official
capacity as the Superintendent of Elections for the Board of
Elections anc Voter Registration for Floyd County, Georgia and
for the City of Rome, Georgiz, in which capacity she is charged
by O.C.G.A. §§ 21-2-70 & 21-2-70.1 with the duty of
conducting elections in Floyd County, Georgia and in the City
of Rome, Georgia;

Ms. Trracy Brown, who is sued individually and in her official
capacity as the Superintendent of Elections for the Board of
Elections and Voter Registration for Bartow County, Georgia,
in which capacity she is charged by O.C.G.A. § 21-2-70 with
the duty of conducting elections in Bartow County, Georgia,
Mr. Gary Petty, Ms. Michelle Hudson, Ms. Amanda
Spencer, Mr. Ron McKelvey, and Ms. Nina Crawford, who
arc sucd individually and in their official capacities as members

of the Board of Elections and Voter Registration for Catoosa
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(iv)

(vi)

County, Georgia, in which capacities they are charged by
0.C.G.A. § 21-2-70 with the duty of conducting elections in
Catoosa County, Georgia;

Judge John Payne, who is sued individually and in his official
capacity as the Supertntendent of Elections for the Board of
Registrars for Chattooga County, Georgia, in which capacity he
is charged by O.C.G.A. § 21-2-70 with the duty of conducting
elections in Chattooga County, Georgia,

Ms. Shea Hicks, who is sued individually and in her official
capacity as the Superintendent of Elections for the Board of
Elections and Registrations for Gordon County, Georgia, in
which capacity she is charged by O.C.G.A. § 21-2-70 with the
duty of conducting elections in Gordon County, Georgia;

Ms. Jennifer A. Johnson, who is sued individually and in her
official capacity as the Superintendent of Elections for the
Board of Elections and Voter Registration for Polk County,
Georgia, in which capacity she is charged by O.C.G.A. § 21-2-
70 with the duty of conducting elections in Polk County,

Georgla; and
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(vii) Mr. Sam Little, who is sued indtvidually and in his official
capacity as the Superintendent of Elections for the Board of
Elections and Registration for Whitfield County, Georgia, in
which capacity he is charged by O.C.G.A. § 21-2-70 with the
duty of conducting elections in Whitfield County, Georgia;

(viii) Hon. Cathy Cox, who is sued individually and in her official
capacity as Secretary of State of the State of Georgia, in which
capacity she is the Chair of the State Election Board by
0.C.G.A. § 21-2-30(d), and has been designated as the Chief
Election Official for purposes of the federal Help America Vote
Act of 2002 by O.C.G.A. § 21-2-50.2, and also the Chief
Election Official for purposes of the National Voter
Registration Act of 1693 by O.C.G.A. § 21-2-210.

Jurisdiction and Venue

3.
This case arises under the Constitution and laws of the United States and of

Georgia. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction of this action under 28 U.S.C.

§§ 1331, 1343(3) & (4) and 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a), anc 42 U.S.C. §§ 1971(d),
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1973)(f) and 1983. This Court has jurisdiction to grant both declaratory and
injunctive relief under 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2102.
4.

Venue in this district and division is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)
because all of the individual defendants identified by name in the complaint, other
than Secretary of State Cathy Cox, reside in this district and division.

S.

Each of the individual plaintiffs is a citizen of the State of Georgia and is
legally registered and duly qualified to vote in local, state and national elcctions in
Georgia, but does not possess a Georgtia driver’s license, passport or other form of
photographic identification specified in the 2005 amendment to O.C.G.A. § 21-2-
417, issued by the State of Georgia or one of its political subdivisions, one of its
sister states in the United States or by an Indian tribe.

Class Allegations

6.
The superintendents and board members of the city and county boards of
elections named in paragraphs 2(a)(i) — (vii) above are members of a class that
consists of superintendents and members of city and county boards of elections in

each of the other 159 counties in the State of Georgia, who are so numerous as to

123H% 106G
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make their joinder impracticable and who can and will fairly and adequately
represent the interests of the members of the class because (a) there are questions
of law and fact that are common to the entire class of city and county election
officials, (b) the claims of the plaintiffs are the same as the claims of other
simifarly situated qualified voters residing in the cities or counties, and (c) any
defenses that might be asserted by one local election official to those claims are the
same as the defenses that might be asserted by or on behalf of any other member of

the class to plaintiffs’ claims.

Certification of a defendant class of all superintendents and members of all
city and county boards of election in Georgia under Fed.R.Civ.P. 23(b)(1) and (2)
is appropriate because (a) the prosecution of separate actions in each of 159
coun‘ies would create a risk of inconsistent and varying adjudications, and (b) a
final decision on the merits in one action may, as a practical matter, have an impact

upon or be dispositive of the interests of other members of the defendant class.

12308 11
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Pre-Existing Georgia Law

8.

Prior to the 1998 elections, voters in Georgia, like registered voters in a
majority of other states, were not required to present any form of identification as a
concition of voting.

9.

As a result of the adoption by the General Assembly of O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417
in 1997, registered voters in Georgia were required for the first time to identify
themselves by presenting one of seventeen forms of identification to election
officials as a condition of being admitted to, and allowed to vote at the polls.
Former O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417.

10.

Under O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417 as it existed prior to its amendment by Act 53 in
20035, registered voters were permitted, but were not required, to present a Georgia
driver’s license or other form of official photographic identificaticn as a method of
identification as a condition of voting. Voters were free, however, to use any of
eight other methods of identification, including such commonly available
documents as a birth certificate, a social security card, a copy of a current utility

bill, a govermment check, a pavroll check, or a bank statement that showed the

123018 12
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name anc address of the voter. Former O.C.G.A § 21-2-417(1)(10), (11). (14),
(15), (16).
11.

In addition, registered voters who did not have or were unable to find one of
the seventeen forms of photographic or non-photographic identification specified
in O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417(a) were entitled under Georgia law, as it existed prior to
the enactmert of Act 53, to be acmitted to the polls, issued a ballot and allowed to
vote simply by signing a statement under oath swearing or affirming that he or she
is the person identified on the elector’s certificate. O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417(b).

The New Photo 1D Requirement

12.

In 2005, the General Assembly of Georgia adopted Act 53, which amended
0.C.G.A. § 21-2-417, to require all registered voters in Georgia who vote in
person in all primary, special or general elections for state, national and local
offices held on or after July 1, 2005, to present a government-issued photographic
identitication card (“Photo ID”) to election officials as a condition of being
admitied ‘o the polls and before being issued a ballot and allowed to vote (“The

new Photo 1D requirement™).

123018 13
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13.

The Secretary of State, as the Chief Election Officer in Georgia, informed
the General Assembly before the passage of Act 53 in a letter (attached hereto as
Exhibit A), and also informed the Governor in a letter (attached hercto as Exhibit
B) before he signed the bill into law, that there had been no documented cases of
fraudulent voting by persons who obtained ballots unlawfully by misrepresenting
their identities as registered voters to poll workers reported to her office during her
nine years as Secretary of State.

14.

Only ! of 43 African-American legislators in both houses of the General
Assembly voted in favor of the bill.

15.

Act 53 was signed by Georgia’s Governor, Sonny Perdue on Aprii 22. 2005,
and the Photo 1D requirements in the bill became effective on July I, 2005, subject

to pre-ciearance by the United States Department of Justice, which was granted on

August 26, 2005.

123018 14
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16.

At the same time that it voted to require the presentation of a Photo D, the
General Assembly also voted to amend O.C.G.A. § 40-3-103(a), by doubling the
minimum fee for a Photo ID from £10 to $20 for a 5-year Photo I, and also
authorizing a new 10-year Photo ID for a fee of $35. Ga. Laws 2005, p. 334 (Act
No. 68) § 17-24(a).

17.

As a result of the adoption of Act 53, Georgia became one of only two (2)
states that requires registered voters to present a photo identification as an ahsolute
condition of being admitted to the polls and allowed to cast a ballot in federal, state
and local elections. A majority of thirty (30) states do not require registered voters
to present any form of identification as a condition of admission to the polls or
casting a ballot, while a minority of twenty (20) states reguires voters to present
some form of identification at the polls, but of these, only two states {Georgia and
Indiana) require that voters present a Photo ID as the scle method of identification

required as a condition of voting,

121018 15
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18.
The press release prepared by the Communications Office of Georgia Act 53
states that only the following forms of Photo ID will be acceptable after the
effective date of the Act:

Acceptable Forms of 1.D.
. Georgia Driver’s License
. State [dentity Card
. Passport
. Government Employee 1D Card
. Military ID Card
. Tribal ID Card

19.

According to the same press release from the House Communications
Office, the following forms of voter identification that had been acceptablc prior to
the enactment of Act 53 will no longer be accepted by clection officials as valid
forms of voter identification after the effective date of the Act:

Farms of ID No Longer Valid
. Birth Certificate
. Social Security Card
. Certified Naturalization Document

. Current Utility Bill

12
123018 16
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. Bank Statement
. Government Check or Paycheck
. Other Government Documents

The New Photo ID Requirement Applies Only To Voters Who Vote In Person
And Does Not Apply To People Who Vote By Mail

20.

The new Photo ID requirement in Act 53 applies only to registered voters
who vote in person. The General Assembly imposed no similar Photo ID
requirement on absentee voters, except those who are voting for the first time.

21.

Although the Secretary of State had informed the members of the General
Assemnbly and the Govemor prior to the enactment of Act 53, that her office had
received many complaints of voter fraud involving absentee ballots and no
documented complaints of fraud that involve ballots that were cast in person at the
polls, the General Assembly ignored this information and arbitrarily chose instead
to require only those registered voters who vote in person to present a Photo [D as

a condition of voting, but deliberately refused to tmpose the same requirement on

absentee voters (other than first-time voters). O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417.

123C1% 17
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The Phato ID Requirement Imposes An Undue Burden On The Right To Vote

22.

The new Photo [D requirement became effective on August 26, 2005, and
imposes an unnecessary and undue burden on the exercise of the fundamental right
to vote of hundreds of thousands of citizens of Georgia who are fully eligible,
registered and qualified to vote, but who do not have Georgia driver’s licenses,
passports, or government employer ID cards or other forms of official
photographic identification issuec by the state or federal government.

23.

Compliance with the new Photo ID requirement will present an especially
high obstacle for registered voters who are {a) poor and do not own a car or truck
and do not have passports because they cannot afford to travel on a passport
outside the United States; (b) elderly and no longer drive (or have a passport which
allows them to travel outside the United States); (c) visually impaired and are
unable to drive (or travel on a passport outside the United States); (d) physically
impaired and are unable to drive (or travel on a passport outside the United States);
(¢) residents of retirement or nursing homes who, by choice or necessity, do not
have driver's licenses or passports; and (f) students without automobiles or

passports who have Photo ID’s issued by private colleges and universities (e.g.,

123G18 18
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Emory, Morehouse, Mercer), but who cannot vote in Georgia without first
acquiring a Photo ID issued by the state or federal government.
24,

AARP and the League have estimated that 152,000 of those who voted in
the general election in Georgia in 2004 were over 60 vears of age and did not have
Georgia driver’s licenses.

25,

The Department of Driver Services (“DDS”) is the only state agency in

Georgia from which a registered voter may obtain an official Phozo ID.
26.

To obtain a Photo ID card from the DDS, a registered voter must (a) travel
to a DDS office, (b) present an original or certified copy of a birth certificate or
other “verifiable evidence” stating the applicant’s name and birth date (O.C.G.A.
§ 40-3-102); and (c) pay a fee of $20 for a 5-year Photo ID or $35 for a 10-year
Photo [D.

27,

There are currently only 56 DDS locations throughout the entire State of

Georgia from which an official state Photo ID may be obtained (see Department of

Driver Services website at www.dds.ga.gov). These offices are only open from

123018 19
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9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Tuesday through Saturday, but are closed on Sundays and
Mondays and evenings, times when voters might be able to obtain a Photo ID
without having to take time off from work.

28.

There is not a single DDS office located within the City of Atlanta,
Georgia's largest city, or in the City of Rome, which means that registered voters
who are residents of those cities are required to travel outside the limits to obtain
the required Photo ID.

29,

There are currently only 56 DDS offices in the entire State of Georgia,
which means that tens of thousands of registered voters who live in 103 of
Georgia’s 159 counties must travel outside their home counties to a DDS office
located in another county to obtain a Photo ID.

30.

To make matters worse, the DDS offices in urban areas typically have long

lines and it is often necessary for a person to stand in line 3 or 4 hours to renew a

Georgia driver’s license or obtain a Photo ID.

123018 20
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31

The time, inconvenience, and expense in terms of the cost of travel to a DDS
office to obtain a Photo ID card, is a significant hardship and burden on plaintiffs
and the hundreds of thousands of other registered voters who do not have driver’s
licenses, passports, or employee Photo ID cards, and this burden does not exist for
those voters who have Georgia driver’s licenses, passports, or state or federal
employee ID cards. The burden is even heavier and a greater obstacle for citizens
who are paid on an hourly basis and may be forced to take time off from work to
travel to a DDS office because the DDS offices are not open evenings after 5:00

p.m. or on Sundays.

The $20 Fee For A Photo ID Is A Poll Tax On The Right To Vote

32.
The $20 fee for a 5-year Photo ID and the S35 fee for a 10-year Photo [D are
a poll tax on the right to vote because these fees are a financial condition for the
right to vote, and exceed the cost of the Photo 11D to the State, and the revenuc
collected by the DDS from the fees for a Photo ID card is deposited in the general
treasury of the State, and is commingled with, and is indistinguishable from, the
revenue generated by other State taxes, including the State income or sales taxes.

0.C.G.A. § 40-5-103(a).

{23018 . 21
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33.

Act 53 imposes an undue burden on the right to vote of voters who will be
required to expend time and money to acquire the underlying documents needed to
be issued a Photo ID card and to travel to state offices to be issued a Photo 1D,

34,

The $20 (or $35) fees are also discriminatory because they are not required
to be paid by all voters as a condition of voting. Voters who have a Georgia
driver’s license, a passport, or a government-issued Photo 11D are not required to
pay 2 $20 (or $35) fee for a Photo ID. Abscntec voters who do not have driver’s
licenses, passports or other Photo ID (other than first-time voters) are also not
required to present a Photo ID as a condition of receiving an absentee ballot, and,
therefore, are not required to pay $20 (or $35) for the privilege of voting, while
other similarly situated voters who vote in person and do not have driver’s licenses
or passports and are not government employees, are required to pay a $20 (or $35)
fee for a Photo ID as a condition of being admitted to the polls.

3s.

Moreover, payment of the $20 (or $35) fee is not a one-time expense (nor is

the time, inconvenience and expense and lost wages involved to travel to a DDS

office). Unlike voter registration cards which are issued free of charge and never

123618 2

AR,



706 o

51

EUWARLD HINE LR P C 1128 345 m 09 149 2004

expire, a $20 Photo ID card is valid only for five years. At the same time that the
Genera: Assembly eliminated the previous requirement of Georgia law that a
driver’s license used for voter identification purposes must be “valid” (i.e.,
unexpired), Act 53 expressly requires that the Photo ID cards be “valid
idenuification cards,” which means that voters who rely on Photo 1D cards in order
to vote, must pay $20 to obtain a new Photo ID card from a DDS office every five
years {or $35 every 10 years) in order to continue voting. This means that a S-year
Photo ID card is a $20 ticket that is good for admission to the polls for only one or
at most two, gubernatorial elections and one (or at most two) presidential elections
— but not two of each, before the Photo [D expires. A voter whose Photo ID card
has expired must acquire a new S20 (or $35) Photo ID card from the State in order
to vole in the succeeding presidential, gubernatorial or local election.

The Waiver Of The Fee Is Ineffective

36.
Section 66 of Act 53 amended O.C.G.A. § 40-5-103 to allow the DDS to
issue a Photo ID to a registered voter “who swears under oath that he or she is
indigent and cannof pay the fee for the identification card, that he or she desires an

identification card in order to vote tn a primary or election in Georgia and that he

123018 23
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or she does not have any other form of identification that is acceptable at the polls
under Code Section 21-2-417 for identiftcation at the polls in order to vote.”
37.

If the statute is read literally, cven a registercd voter who is “indigent” (a
term that is undefined in the Act and vague in its general usage) cannot qualify for
the waiver of the $20 fee under the first requirement of the statue if he or she has at
least $20, because he or she cannot truthfully swear that he or she “cannot pay the
fee” as required by the plain wording of the statute.

38.

A voter may not be able to qualify for a waiver under the second
requirement of the statute because the term “indigent” in the 2005 amendment to
0.C.G.A. § 40-5-103 is not defined and is so vague that a person of orcinary
intelligence can only guess at the meaning of the term “indigent” in this context.
Moreover, the Act leaves clerical personnel in each of the 56 DDS offices (and
local district attorneys) free to apply their own subjective interpretations of the
term “Indigent” in determining whether a particular individual is eligible for a
waiver of the $20 fee. It is unclear for example, whether a person who earns only
$5.15 per hour minimum wage 1s “indigent” within the meaning of the statute and

would qualify for a waiver of the $20 fee as a resuit.

123018 24
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39.

Even if the term “indigent” in O.C.G.A. § 40-5-103 were interpreted broadly
under some unstated definition, the $20 fee would still constitute an
unconstitutional poll tax on the right to vote of thousands of other registered voters
who are not indigent, but who do not have driver’s licenses, passports, or
government issued Photo ID cards; moreover the $20 poll tax is also
discriminatory because it does not have to be paid by absentee voters or voters who
have onc of the permitted forms of photo 1denttficatior.

40.

Finally, the waiver of the $20 fee for registered voters who are “indigent”
and “‘cannot pay the fee,” does not relieve a registered voter who does not have a
valid Georgia driver’s license, a passport, or other form of official Photo ID of the
burden and expense of having to spend the time and incur the cost of having to
travel by bus or taxi to a DDS office that may be located in another city or county,
miles from their homes or places of work to obtain a Photo 1D in order to vote.
These costs constitute a far greater and more significant obstacle to voting than the
$20 tee, and fall almost exclusively and most heavily on the poor, the infirm, and
the elderly and not on the more affluent individuals who own cars, have driver’s

licenses and/or passports,
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The New Photo 1D Requirement Will Have A Disparate Impact
On African American Voters

4]1.

The new Photo ID requirement will also have a disparate impact on the right
to vote of registered voters who are African Americans, as compared to voters who
are white, because African-American voters in Georgia, as a group, are (a) less
affluent than wnites, and (b) are three times less likely to own or have access to a
motor vehicle than arc whites, according to recent data published by the U.S.
Census Bureau. Census Survey File 3 (SF3) HCT33B.

It Is Impossible For Some Voters To Obtain A Photo ID

42.

The Georgia Department of Driver Services requires an applicant to present
an “original or a certified copy " of a birth certificate issued by an official state
agency as a condition of obtaining a Photo ID, and has also stated that “Hospital
birth certificates are not acceptable.” Exhibit C, Georgia Department of Driver

Services “Applving for a Georgia ID Card” (www.dds.ga.gov).

43,
A registered voter who was born in Georgia and does not have the original
or a certified copy of his or her original birth certificate, must apply to the Georgia

Division of Public Health and pay a search fee of $10 and an additional fee of $10
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for a certified copy of his or her birth certificate. Exhibit D

(www.health state.ga.us/programs/vitalrecords/birth.asp).

44.
Itis impossible for a registered voter who does not have a Photo ID to obtain
a certified copy of his or her birth certificate from the Georgia Division of Public
Health because the Georgia Division of Public Health demands the following:
Required Information
The person requesting a certified copy of a birth record
must provide . . . a signed request form, and a photocopy of your
valid photo 1D, such as a driver’s license, state-issued 1D card, or

employer issued photo 1D (www.health.state.ga.us/programs/
vitalrecords/birth.asp). Exhibit D.

43,

Moreover, it is impossible for registered voters who were born in Georgia
before 1919 to obtain a certified copy of their birth certificates because the Georgia
Division of Public Health does not maintain a record of births prior to 1919. /[d.

46.

Finally, many older and less affluent registered voters cannot obtzin a Photo
1D because they do not have birth certificates on file with the Department of Vital
Statistics in Georgia or ather states for a variety of reasons; (a) because they were

born betore such records were recorded and maintained, (b} because they were
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born at home and no official records of their births were filed, or (c) because they
were informally adopted and have lived for years under the name of their adoptive
parents, rather than the name under which they were born, among other reasons.

The Stated Purpose Of The Photo ID Requirement (Fraud) Is A Pretext

47.
According to a press release prepared by the Communications Office of the
Georgia House of Representatives, the purpose of Act 53 is:
.. . to address the issue of voter fraud by placing tighter restrictions on
voter identification procedures. Those casting ballots will now be
required to bring a photo ID with them before they will be allowed to
vote,
48.
Al Marks, Vice Chairman for Public Affairs and Communication of the Hall

County GOP told the Gainesville Times:

I don’t think we need it for voting, because [ don’t think
there’s a voter fraud probiem.

Gainesville Times, “States Voters Must Present Picture [Ds” (September 15, 2005)

(www.gainesvilletimes.com).

49.
The stated purpose of the Photo 1D requirement was a pretext that is

intended to conceal the true purpose of the amendment, which was, and is to
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suppress voting by the poor, the elderly, the infirm, African-American, Hispanic
and other minority voters by increasing the difficulty of voting.
50.

There is no evidence that the existing provisions of Georgia law have not
been effective in deterring and preventing imposters from fraudulently obtaining
and casting ballots at the polls by misrepresenting their true identities to election
officials and passing themselves off as registered voters whose names appear on
the official voter registration list.

51

The pretextural nature of the purported justification for the burden which the

Photo ID requirement imposes on the right to vote is shown by the following facts:

(a)  Fraudulent voting was already prohibited by existing Georgia law
without unduly burdening the right of a citizen to votc.

(i)  Fraudulent voting was alrcady prohibited as a crime under
0.C.G.A. §§ 21-2-561,21-2-562, 21-2-566, 21-2-571,21-2-572
and 21-2-600, punishable by a fine of up to $10,000 or
imprisonment for up to ten years, or both.

()  Voter registration records are updated periodically by the
Secretary of State and local election officials to eliminate
people who have died, have moved, or are no longer eligible ‘o
vote in Georgia for some other reason.

(1ii) Existing Georgia law also required eiection officials in each
precinct to maintain a list of names and addresses of regis:cred
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(b)

(c)

(d)

voters residing in that precinct, and to check off the names of
each person from that official list as they cast their ballots.

{(iv) Registered voters were also required by existing Georgia law to
present at least one of the scventeen forms of documentary
identification to election officials who were rcquired, before
issuing the voter a ballot, to match the namc and address shown
on the document to the name and address on the official roll of
registered voters residing in the particular precinct. O0.C.GG.A.

§ 21-2-417.

There is no evidence that the existing Georgia law has not been
effective in deterring or preventing fraudulent in-person voting by
impersonators — the only kind of fraudulent voting that might be
prevented by the Photo 1D requirement. To the contrary, the
Secretary of Statc, who, as the Superintendent of Elections, is the
highest clection official in Georgia, informed both the General
Assembly (Exhibit A) and the Governor (Exhibit B) in writing that
there had been no documented cases of fraudulent in person voting by
impostcrs reported to her during her nine years in office.

[f the true intention of the General Assembly had been to preven:
fraudulent voting by imposters, the General Assembly would have
imposed the same restrictions on the casting of absentee ballots —
particularly after the Scerctary of State had called to their attention the
fact that there had been many documented instances of fraudulent
casting of absentec ballots reported to her office.

Fraudulent in-person voting is unlikely, would be easily detected if it
had occurred in significant numbers, and would not be likely to have a
substantial impact on the outcome of an election:

(1)  Many people vote at a local neighborhood polling place where

they are likely to be known to and recognized by neighbors or
poll workers.

30
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(i)

(ii1)

Voters were required by existing Georgia law (O.C.G.A. § 21-
2-417), to provide one of the seventeen means of identification
to election officials.

Election officials are required, before issuing the hallot to the
voter, to check off the name of either voter from an up-to-date
list of the names and addresses of every registered voter
residing in the precinct. If an imposter arrived at a poll and was
successful in fraudulently obtaining a ballot before the
registered voter arrived at the poll, a registered voter, who
having taken the time to go to the poils to vote, would
undoubtedly complain to clections officials if he or she were
refused a ballot and not allowed to vote because his or her name
had already been checked off the list of registered voters as
having voted. Likewise, if an imposter arrived at the polls after
the registered voter had voted and attempted to pass himself off
as somcone he was not, the election official would instantly
know of the attempted fraud, would not issue the imposter a
ballot or allow him to vote, and presumably would have the
imposter arrested or at least investigate the attempted fraud and
report the attcmpt to the Secretary of State as Superintendent of
Elections.

The Photo 1D Requirement Is Overbroad And Was Not Narrowly Tailored

52.

Even if the Photo I requirement had been truly intended to prevent

fraudulent voting by imposters, the new Photo ID requirement is overbroad and

was not narrowly tailored:

123078

(1)

Overbroad because it applies to and burdens the rigat to vote ol
the vast majority of citizens who cast their ballots in person in
order to prevent a hypothetical miniscule fraction of people
from fraudulently casting ballots by misrcpresenting their
identities to poll workers.

31
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(11)  Not narrowly tailored to prevent the primary source of what
fraudulent voting does exist - namely fraudulent voting by
absentee ballots.

Count One

{(Violation of Art. II, § L, § I1 of the Georgia Constitution)

53.
The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 52 above are hereby incorporated as
allegations of paragraph 53 of Count One of the complaint.
54.
Art. 11, § I, § IT of the Georgia Constitution sets forth the exclusive list of the
qualifications to vote in Georgia and provides as follows:
Right to register and vote.

Every person who is a citizen of the United States and a
resident of Georgia as defined by law, who is at least 18 years of age
and not disenfranchised by this article, and who meets minimum
residency requirements as provided by law shall be entitled to vote
at any election by the people. The Genceral Assembly shail provide
by law for the registration of electors.

55.

Each of the individual plaintiffs and every other citizen of Georgia has an

absolute constitutional right to register and vote under Article [1, § I, €1 of the
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Georgia Constitution, provided he or she meets the five qualifications set forth in

the Georgia Constitution, which are cxclusive:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

is a citizen in the United States;

is at least 18 ycars of age;

meets the minimum residency requirement as provided by law;

has registered to vote in the manner prescribed by law; and

has not been disenfranchised by Article II, Section I, Paragraph I1I of
the Georgia Constitution based on (i) a conviction for a felony
involving moral turpitude (Art. 11, § I, § TlI(a)), or (ii) has been

adjudicated mentally incompctent to vote (Art. II, § I, T [TI(b)).

56.

By requiring that registercd voters present a Photo ID before being issued a

ballot and allowed to votc, the 2005 amendment to O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417 by Act 53

purports to add a new condition and qualification of voting in addition to those

specified by Article I, § I, § 11 of the Georgia Constitution, and is, therefore,

unconstitutional, null and void.

123018
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Count Two

Undue Burden on the Right to Vote in
Violation of Equal Protection of the Law

57.

The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 52 above are hereby incorporated as

allegations of paragraph 58 of Count Two of the complaint.
58.

The Photo [D requirement imposes an undue burden on the fundamental
right of registered voters in Georgia to vote that is neither justified by, nor
necessary to promote a substantial and compelling state interest that was not
already being adequately protected by existing criminal laws and election
procedures, or which could not have been accomplished in other, less restrictive
alternatives. Dunn v. Blumstein, 405 U.S. 330 (1972); Harper v. Virginia Board of
Elections, 383 U.S. 663 (1972).

59.

The Photo ID rcquirement is also overbroad and 1s not rarrowly tailored to
prevent what few documented tnstances of fraudulent voting that do exist {i.e.,
fraudulent voting of absentee ballots), while making it stgnificantly harder for
hundreds of thousands of qualified citizens who vote in person to cast ballots in

order to prevent a hypothetical — and so far as the Secretary cf State knows, a non-

123018 14
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exisient — possibility that a few individuals might attempt to vote illegally by
misrepresenting their identity to poll workers.

Count Three

Unconstitutional Poll Tax on the Right to Vote
In Violation of Both the Fourteenth and the Twenty-Fourth Amendments

60.
The allegations of paragraphs | through 52 above are hereby incorporated as
allegations of paragraph 61 of Count Three of the complaint.
61.
Act 53, in combination with O.C.G A. § 40-5-103, imposes an

unconstitutional $20 poll tax on the right to vote in federal, state and Jocai elcctions
in Georgia.
62.

Conditioning the right to vote in person or the payment of a $20 fce to
purchase a Photo ID violates the equal protection clause in both the Georgia and
United States Constitutions because the fee must be paid only by some voters
(those who vote in person, but do not have passports, government employee 1D
cards, or Georgia driver’s licenses) and not by others (absentee voters and voters
who have passports, government employee ID cards or Georgia driver’s licenses).

See Harper v. Virginia, 383 U.S. 663 (1966).
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63.

Even if the $20 fee is not discriminatory, and applied uniformly to all voters,
the Photo IID requirement is still invalid as applied to the right to vote in federal
elcctions because it conflicts with the Twenty-Fourth Amendment.

Section 1. The right of citizens of the United States to vote in any
primary or other election for President or Vice President, for clectars
for President or Vice President, or for Senator or Representative in
Congress, shall not be denied or abridged by the United States or any
State by reason of failure to pay a poll tax or other tax.
Amendment XXIV to the United States Constitution, Section 1; see Harman v.
Forysenius, 380 U.S. 528 (1965) (emphasis added).

Count Four

Violation of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(42 U.S.C. 8§ 1971(a)(2)(A) and 1971(a)(2)}(B))

64,
The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 52 above are hereby incorporated as
allegations of paragraph 65 of Count Four of the complaint.
65.
The Photo ID requirement in Act 53, therefore, violates the Civil Rights Act
of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 1971(a){(2}(A), which provides that:

No person acting under color of law shall -
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(A) in determining whether any individual is qualified under State
law or laws to vote in any election, apply any standard, practice, or
procedure different from the standards, practices, or procedures
applied under such law or laws to other individuals within the same
county, parish, or similar political subdivision who have been found
by State officials to be qualified to vote; . . .

42 U.S.C. § 1971(a)(2}(A) (emphasis added).

66.

The Photo ID requirement violates 42 U.S.C. § 1971(a)(2)(A) because only

voters who vote in person are required to present a Photo ID as a condition of

being allowed to vote, while Georgia law imposes no such Photo ID requirement

on voters residing in the same “county” or “political subdivision” who vote by

casting absentee ballots.

67.

The Photo ID requirement in Act 53 also violates the Civil Rights Act of

1964 (42 U.S.C. § 197 [(a)(2)(B)), which provides that:

1230E

No person acting under color of law shall -

(B} deny the right of any individual to vote in any election because of
an error or omission cn any record or paper relating to any
application, registration, or other act requisite to voting, if such error
or omission is not material in detcrmining whether such
individual is qualified under State law to vote in such election;. ..
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68.

The Photo 1D requirement violates 42 U.S.C. § 1971(a)(2)(B) because it
denies individuals who are fully qualitied and lawfully registered the right to vote
in person based solely on whether or not they have a government-issued Photo 1D,
regardless of whether their identity may be established by other means, such as
when their signatures can be matched to the signatures on their ofticial voter
registration cards, or if they are personally known to election officials to be the
same person as the person whose name appears on the official list of registered
volers.

Count Five

Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act

69.
The allegations of paragraphs | through 52 above are hereby incorporated as
allegations of paragraph 70 of Count Five of the corplaint.
70.
Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965 (42 U.S.C. § 1973(a)) provides:
(a) No voting qualification or prerequisite to voting or
standard, practice, or procedure shall be imposed or
applied by any State or political subdivision in a manner
which resuits in a denial or abridgement of the right of

any citizen of the United States to vote on account of race
or color.

12301% i3
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71.

Non-white citizens of Georgia, as a group, have lower personal and family
incomes than citizens of Georgia who are white, and are less likely, as a group, to
have Georgia driver’s licenses, passports or other government-issued Photo [Ds,
than are white citizens, as a group.

72.

Act 53's requirement of possession of a government 1ssued photo identity
card in order to cast a vote and/or have one’s vole counted is a qualification to
voting, a standard practice or procedure with respect to voting which will result in
the denial of the right to vote to individual plaintiffs and others on account of race
or color in violation of Section 2 of the voting Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1973(a).

Irreparabie Harm / Inadequate Remedy At Law

73.
There are dozens of municipal and county elections that will be subject to
the Photo [D requirement scheduled to be held on November &, 2005, including the

2005 municipal elections for the City of Rome and the City of Atlanta,
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74.

The individual plaintiffs and the members of the organizational plaintiffs
who do not have one of the forms of 1D required by the 2005 amendment to
0.C.G.A. § 21-2-417 will be irreparably harmed if they arc forced, between now
and the next election to either (a) obtain a Photo ID from a State DDS office, or
(b) forfeit their rights as registered voters to vote in the next and subsequent
elections or referenda in their respective voting districts or political subdivisions
for which they cannot be adequately compensated in an action at law for money
damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully pray that:

(a) the Court enter a declaratory judgment pursuant to 28 U1.S.C. § 2201
declaring the Photo 1D requirement in the 2005 Amcndment to
0.C.G.A. § 21-2-417 unconstitutional, null and voic;

(b)  the Court enter a preliminary and a permanent injunction pursuant to
Fed.R.Civ.P. 65 restraining and enjoining defendants individually and
:n their official capacities from enforcing or applying the Photo 1D
requirement in the 2005 Amendment to O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417 (Act
No. 53, Section 59) to deny plaintiffs or any other registered voter in

Georgia admission to the polls, a ballot, or the right ‘o cast their
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ballots and have their ballots counted in any special, general, run off
or referenda election in Georgia because of their failure or refusal to
present an official Photo [D required by O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417;

(¢) plaintiffs recover their reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs; and

(d) plaintiffs have such other and further relief as may be just and
equitable.

This 19" day of September 2005.

Respectfully submitted,

!
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Secretary of State ﬁ &
214 State Capitol 4 E S
Atlanta, Georgia 30334 £55 mgﬁ.
Ln
Cathy Cox B E EE g

SECRETARY OF STATE .::r'
(424} 6562881 . a 1
— B3
MEMORANDUM 8 3

| it

TO: Members of the Qeorgie State Senate =I-

FROM: Cathy Cox
DATE: Marek 29,2005

RE: HB 244

Today you will consider HB 244. Much has been said and written about this
particular piece of legislation, and ] will not attempt to address the sweeping changes that
are proposed by this comprehensive elections bill. Rather, 1 ask you consider ane
irmportant point wday,

Over the past 9 years, [ proposed — and yau pessed -- a number of meaqures w0
snhance the integrity cf elections - Including the cwreat voter [D law, improved
atherity 10 remove the names of deceaged voters from the rolls, higher penalties that can
be imposad by the State Elections Beard, and aumerous provisiond te tightar voter
rogta‘ration requirements. We centinue 1¢ pursus efforts to fight freud in any arca of the

voting process.

For that reason, we are tremondously eoncerned about the staggering
opportunitics for voter fraud that will be created by HB 244. By aliowing any person, ot
eay time within 45 days befors &n alection, to vote an absentee ballot by mail — with no
ID requirsnient snd no requirernen; o state one of the curren? conditions for voting
absentes (0.C.G.A. § 21-2-380) -- suck as being out of town on slection day, having &
disability, being over 75 years olg, etc.), you would be opening a gaping opporturity for
fraac. At virtually every meeting of the State Elections Board during the past 10 years,
we have dealt with cases iavolving fraud or election law viclations in handlicg or voling
absentee ballots. HB 244 removes a!] restrictions on voting by mail, and thus makes it
gquite sirple for somecne inclined to commit fracd to do so.

R
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Memo to Members of the Gsorgia State Senats
March 23, 2005
Page 2

This completely cortradiots the reasnns stated for another measure contained in
HB 244 ~ the photo ID requirement. If the authors are jndeed concerned about voter
{reud, they would not likely authorize the easiest — and most prevalent form — of election
law violations: unregulated voting by mail. In the past 9 years, neither my staff nor [ can
receil & single case or complaint of a voter impersonating another voter at the polls - the
issue sought to be corrected by mandatory photo identification. And had this been
ccewrring, some voter surely would have complained upon finding that someornse clse had
volsd under thelr name. ]t hasm’t happened.

uige you 1o fully consider all the changss proposed by HB 244, This bill started
cut a8 the “housckeeping” legislation proposed by my office, but other bills - HB 597
22¢ SB 84 - have now been merged into . “[he bill atiempts to solvo a prablem that does
not exist while expanding ‘ha opportunity for frand in the arca that has Jang been the
mast vulnerable to this type of abuse — the rmailed absenioc ballot,

Thank you for your consideration and I hope you will iet me know if yout have
any questions,
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Cathy Cox

{404) 656-2881

Secretary of State
214 State Capital
Atlanta, Georgia 30334
SECHETARY O7 STATE April 8, 2005
Honorable Sonny Perdue
Governor, Stete of Georgia
203 Stata Capite]

Atlanta, Georgia 10334
Dear Governor Perdue:

1 am writing 1o you to request that you veto House Bill 244, It js my strong belicf that tke
picture identification requirement in Houss Bill 244 is (1) unnccessary, (2) creates a very
significant obstacle to voting on the part of mdreds of thousands of Grorgians, including the
pocr, the infirm and the elderly who do not have drivers licensas becaxe they sre either too poor
to own & car, are unahle to drive car, or have po noed to dove a car, (3) very unlikely to recsive
pre-clearance under the Voting Rights Act by the Department of Justice, (4) violates Art. [0,
section ! paragraph [ of the Georgia Constitution by sdding a condition on the right to vote that is
rot conteined in the constitition end (5) imposes an wndus tnrden on = fundamental right of all
citizens, the right to vote, in violation of both the stats and the fedaral constitutions. |

My concems in this regard are not fanciful or without thorough consideration. I cal your
atterrtion. to an official opinicn issued by the Atorney General of Michigan ip 1997, in which ke
declared unconstitutional e voter idemsification statute adopted by the Mickigan legistature that
was lass restrictive than the provisions in House Bill 244. For your conveniencs, [ have atteched
e copy of that opinion to this letter. It is my opinion thar absent & veto of Houss Bill 244, 1t is
importaat ‘hat the state assess the jegality of the legislstion before it becomes subject to possible
litigation with respect to its constinutionality which, m tumn, could bring unnecessary cost and
embarTrssment to our state.

In order to more clearly state my coocerns, T sumit to you the following:

Ll The phoro identification reqidremenis of House Bill 244 are unnecessary.

Cne of the primary justificetions given by the Legislature for the passage of the photo
identification provisions of Housa Bill 244 — the elimination of votes ID frand et the polls -
- is an uafounded justificatizn. I cannot recall one documented case of voter fraud doring
my tenure a3 Secretary of State or Assistant Sacretary of State that specifically related ta
the impersonaticn of & registered voter at voting polls, Cur state currently hes several
practices and procedures in existence to ensure that such casex of voter fraud would have
been detected if thay in fact occwred, and at the very least, we would have complgints cf
voters who were unable o vole because someons had previously representec bimself or
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herself a3 such perzoa on that respective Election Day, As a practical matter, there is no
possibility that vote frand of this type would have gone undetactzd if it had in fact occurred
because there is a list of registered voters at each palling place that is checked off a5 each
person votes, If the impersonator voted first, and the Jepitimste voter came to the polling
plece later in the dsy and tried to vote, he ar she would be told that they had elrcady
"voued" end would not be allowed to vote a second time in the same day. It is reasonable to
suspect that & voter who cered epough to show up at the polls to cast & ballot would almos:
certainly have compisined - but thero have been mo such complaints. If the opposite
occaured, and the [sgitimate person came to the palls first and cast his ballot the
impersonator who showed up latsr would not be allowed o vote for the same reason ard
the attemptod fraud would have beea prevented,

In eddition, this stede hay adopted sovers criminal semetions for the type of voter
impersonation thet is purportedly of concern end it is evideat that soch pepalties have been
2 sufficient doterrent. In sssence, theee is 1o voter fraud problem currenty in existenco that
House Bill 244 addresses. Additionally, (ho concern for this type of voter fraud has ot
prompted cther states to mpprove logislation &9 restrictive as House Bill 244, Forty-two of
those states provide for other valid forms of identification besides photo identification. Of
the othes seven stales, pat ous is ay restrictive as the legistation recently snacisd ia ow
swate, If this type of vo'ing fraud was a national trend, other states would likely be adopting
legislation as restrictive &5 House Bill 244,

In contrest to the lack of voter fraud relating to impersonation of voters at palls during my
tenure, tho State Blection Board has reviewed numercus cases of voter fraud relating to taz
.use of absentee ballots, However, the Legislature, in edopting House Bill 244 grossly
expended the opportunities for absentee voting by mail without eny phntographi:
identification requirement whatsoever, even though sbsentee ballots pose morc of  threat
of votirg fraud than people voting in u polting locatioa ia their community, As & result, the
type of voter fraud that has frequently occwred in our state is not addressed, and in fast is
eashacced by the expansion of v -mail epportunities. In sum, the justification for
House Bill 244 ia but n pretext.

The photp identificotion reguirements of House BUf 244 creaig Jubstantial obstacles to

pnany Georpla votery,

Requiring someone who is otherwise registered and fully qualified to vote to present &
government issued picture idertification at the polling place as a condition of voting places
g very real burder on many people, and especially upon the poor and the clderdy who do
not own or cannot drive a car and thercfore do not hsve drivers' licenses. It is estimated by
the League of Women Voters and the AARP thel an estimaled 152,664 irdividuals over the
age of 60 who voted in the 2004 presidentiz] election do tot have 1 Georgia driver’s license
and are likely oot to bave other photo idemtification. For such voters to obtein
identification is often in unnecessarily burdensome task, particularly if such voters are in
retiremen:t corrpunitisy and assisted liviog facilities, or ve in rura] arcas.
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In addition, for many of the poorest residents of owr state, photographic identificetion is nct
just & matter of unnecessary documentation thet has no direct bearing on their day to day
lives (thoy oflez have no need 1o drive or travel, or otherwise engage in activities that
require a license), but is w burcen of cost, economy and time. Although seemingly nominsl,
a2 $8.00 fea for an identification card mey be & cost thet meny of our poor residents are
anabls to bear. Given the fact that the United Stete Suprome Court has beld that a $1.50
poll tax is an uncenstindtional burdsn on the ability for an individual to vote (Harper v.
State Bd of Elections, 383 U.S. 663 (1966)}, s $8.00 foe for an identification card required
by the state would also seemingly be imeonstitutional, even if such fee ray b waived by
the statn in the cvoat that a voter swears *hat be or she is indigmot. In fact, to require that
someone swear arnd affirm they are indigent when they are above the leve] of indigence but
nonetheless too poor to afford the cost of an identification card, is both an affont to that
persos as well as an unlawful requiremtent that he or she sweer to something that is not true.
In eddition, there are other costs related to obinining an identification which the state does

not bave the ability to wakve, For an individua! wotking on an bourty wege, the time it

1akes 10 travel to s DMVS (whick may be an unreasonable distance sway from the residezis
howme or office), wzit in the lengthy lines that result from only having 56 DMVS offices in
the state (sccording to the list of lacations posted on werw.dmve.pa pov) and then the return
commute, results in actoal lost wages. For the state to require this of owr citizens, some of
whom cannot afford to take such time off, is an innocessary burden related to the exervice
of that person’s right to vote.

The zeography of stats DMVS offices poses a significant burden on mzny resicents who
would be required to obtain identifieafion im order to vote. Given this state has ozly 56
PMVS offices, citizens withourt cars who regida in 103 of the 159 counties in Georgia must
travel outside their home counties to obtain a siate-igue picture ID in arder to vote. Nor is
there & single location to obtain such an ID in the city of Atlant.

The photo ldentification requiremnents of House Bill 244 are very suplikely (o receive pre-
clearance by the Department of Juxtice under the Voting Riphts Act,

As you kre aware, pursuant to Section 5 of the Voting Righta Act of 1965, s araended by
42 US.C. § 1973c, when this state (or any other statc) seeks to edmindster any changes in
voting qualifization or prercquisites ta voling or standards, practice or procedurs i must
gubm:t such qualifications for pre-clearance by the U.S. Department of Justice Civil Rights
Divigion. To obtain preclearance under §5, the state, as submitting authority, bas the
burdzn of showing that the sutmmitted change has acither discriminatory parpose nor eifect.
(Brooks v. State Bd of Elections, 175 F.Supp. 1470, af"d 498 1).5. 916).

There are demographic factors that give pausas for concem regarding the disperets irpact
that House Bil! 244 muy have with respect to the disenfranchisement of & ¢lass of voters,
Recent census data indicates that African Americans in Georgia are nearly five times more
likely not to have access to a motor vehicls than are whites. Censur Stewmary File 3 {8F3)
HCT 33B. This statistic, as well 13 the general discussicn above regarding the cconomis
impact of requiring voters to abtain identificarion, reisss even greater sceutiny of the

Ly
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constitujonality of Houss Bill 244. The very issus of disparate impact on minority voters is
one of which we should be mindful and could possibly Jeed to the “retrogression in e
position of racial minorities with respect to their effective exorcise of their electoral
franchise.” Beer v, Untred States, 42510.8. 130 (1978).

[ helped to write Georgia's current Voter ID law in 1897, and the existing lis: of aczeptable
types of ID was crefted in careful consideration with the Deparment of Justice so that we
could assure pro-clearance, The affidavit provision in current law, whish sernves as a “fall
back™ provision to prevent & valid voter from being turned awwy st the polls, wes
specifically included at the roquest of the Deparsment of Justice.

The fact that the photo identification provisions of House Bill 244 «ili have disparate
ipact on the elderly, the disabled, rural volers and rminority voters, as well as the fact that
there are limited DMVS locations aveilable in our state 0 satisfy the demard we aro
placing on citizens to obtain phetogrephic idemtification, and that ne “fall beck™ provisicns
exist for a voter who simply does not have or may have lost their photo ID, I have great
concern with respect to the prospocts of House Bill 244°s pre-clearance. In particular, anc
83 you may be awars, in 1994 and 1995, the DOJ objocted to cortam provisions of
Louisiana’s then voter identification starute which was strikingly similar to House Bil] 244,

The ploto identification reguirements of House Bifl 244 violate Article IT Section [,
paragraph IT of the Georpia Constitution

Articls I1, Section L, Paragraph 11 of the Constitutior. of the State of Georgin provides that:

“Every peryon who is @ citizen of the United Stated aad o resident of Georgia as defined
by law, who iy af Jeast | years of age md oot disznfranchised by this articls, and who
mets the minimim residency roquirements as provided by Law shall be eatitied to vote
&t any clection by the peopls. The Generel Assembly shall provide by law for the

roglstration of ¢lectors.”

As npoted gbove, the relsvamt portion of the Georgia Constitution sets forth the
guaiifications for entitlement 10 vote in clections by the pesple, and tho General Assembly
provides by law for ths registration of electors. The Georgin Constitution does not vest
the General Assembly the suthortty w add qualifications to the eligibiliry to vote. Under
House Bill 244, even if an elector satisfies each of the qualifications set forth in Article IT,
Section I, Paragraph II, the ¢lector may still not be eligible to voteif such elecior does not
possess a photo jdentification in accordsnce with Houss Bill 744, This is in clear

. coatradiction to the Goorpia Constitution and is, in my opinicn, & fundamenta! aspect nf the

unconstitutionality of House Biil 244,

R
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5. The phkota ldentlfication requirementy ouse Bill 244 impose an undue burden on the
[undamentol right of all citizens — the right to vote — in yiplation of the state and federal
constifitions.

Cur fedsral and state courts have consistently recognized the right ‘o vote s one of the most
fimdaments. rights of our citizens. Wesberry v. Sanders, 376 US 1 (1964). The right to vote
is “preservative” of other rights, and is one that bears the strictest of scrutiny and it is the
fundameatal nature of thir right which camaat be burdened by state actions. Hoper v Sicte
Bd of Elections, 383 U.S. 663 (1966), Regmolds v, Simy, 377 US 533 (1964). The United
States Supreme Court, in Dunn v. Blumstein, 405 U.S. 330 (1972), recopnized the clase
constitutional review required with respect to any restriction on the right o vats, In
particular, the Supreme Court held in Diaun that “before the right [to vots] caa be restricted,
the purpose of the restriction and the assertedly overriding interests served by it must meet
strict comstitutional scrutiny.” In additon, our sta’e Supreme Court has also held that
“substantive due process requiras that viate [nfriogement on a fundamental Fight be narmowly
tailored to serve a cornpelling state interest” State of Ga. v. Jackyon, 269 Ga 308 (1998),
Our Suprzme Court has aiso held that “whan it is established that the legislation ‘manifestly
infringes upon = canvtitutional provision or viclates the rights of the peopls” that the statute
shauld be declared unconstitutional.” Cobb Cownty School District v. Barker, 271 Ga. 3§
(1995). The intersection of these two precedents preseats two clear questions. First,
acknowledging that the right to vols is » fundamental right, is House Bill 244 narrowly
tailored to serve o compelling siste interost? Second, is it established that the photo
idewification requirements of House Bili 244 do not manifestly infringe upon the rights of
the people? Based on the foregoing facts referenced above, the answer to both of these
questions is no.

Governor, House Bill 244 places en urfair and heavy burden on the right to vots of tens
of thousends of Geargia cittzens, especially on the poor, the eiderly and the physicaily mfirm, and
thercfore has been vigorousty opocsed by the AARP, the NAACP, the Leagus of Women Voiers
and dozzny of churches end denominations of all faiths for this reason.

In the eveni that ycu do 9ot agree with my analysis, I request that you ask Georgis
Atorney Generul Thurbert Baker for his opinion as to the constitutionality of Houre Bill 244,
The request of such an cpinion conld not possibly harm the state and could save the stae the
considersble embarrassmeat and expense of having House Bill 244 either rejected by the
Department of Justice under the Voting Righte Act, o from having to defsnd smy case brought by
voters in the sinte or fedora] courts to have House Bill 244 declared unconstititional.

I apprecigte your consideration and urge your vetc of House Bill 244,

Sinw

Cathy Cox

ce: Hoporeble Thurbert Baker
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Departraent of Driver Services Page @ of”

T—o" BRIVER SERVICES

h

Applying for a Georgia ID Card

Any perscn that ig old enough to sign thei- rame, or make a mark indicating their egal signa‘tue can
apply to the DDS for a identification card You must provide acceptable proof of identification. You esn
apply for an identification carc if your Georgia driver license is suspended or revoked. You do not have
to surrender a Georgia ideatification card when you get a Gedrgia driver izense or your Geo’g a driver
licensa is remstated.

A identfication card contains the same personai in‘ormation, phata, signature and special protection
agains! alteration and fraud as a drivar licenhse. The cost of the |dentificalion Card is $20.00 for §
years or $35 for a card valid 10 years.

1. Applicant must furnish proof that he or she resides in Georgia and must provide a valid Georgia
residence address. The following tems are acceptaple
o Uility bill with valid Georgia reskience adaress,
o Bank statemert with valid Georgia residence address;
¢ Rental conlracis and/or receipts with valid Georgia residence address,
o Employer verffication;
o BGeorgia license issued to pa‘ent, guardian or spcuse.
2. Applicant must surender all previous orivers licenses, identification cards, ang Instructicnal
perms to the Examiner.
o [f app icant doss not have in their possession, a license/|D card to surrender, must
provice a cerfified capy of Molor Vehicle Report or stetus letier from previous state.

A First time appiicanls for 8 Georgia license or permit or identification carc must show some
acceotakle form of persanal identification that includes full name, month, day and year of birth
After verifoation of full name and date of birth, documents will ba returned immediately 10 the
licensee. Tre following tema are acceptable but must be Original or a Certified Copy

c Original birth cartificate (State issued) State Vita! Statistics (Hospita. bitth certficates are
not acceptahie).

Certified copy of birth certificate (Issued frorn Vital Stat stics with affixed sezl)

Cedfficate of birth regustration

Coriffied copy of court records (adoptian, name changes or sex changes )

Cerlified naturalization records

Immigration .0 card Immigration and Naturalzation

o Valid Passport

4. Anyone applying for a Georgia driver's license or wwentification card st p-ovide a social
security number at the time of issuance. 't is not necessary to have your Jrigina social security
carc However, penalties wil oocur if an incorrect social securty number is provided.

(el B« N wlN ¢ ]

LS. citizers must furnish proo® of et zenship. Nen-U 8. citizens must present proper INS
decumeniat on Documents presented mast be either in English or translated into Engiisk by a
translator approved by Ine Department of Diver Senices.

Last Lpdated On. 7/8/2C05
€ 2205 State of Secrg.a Oepaitmsn’ of Dnver Servces
Privacy Siatement

http://www.dds.ga. gov/printable. aspx?con=1747740603 & y=dl 8:17/2003
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~ Georgia Division of Public Health | Vital Records Page 1 of 2
! Site butex
: . georgia division
s frolh o Vital Records of public health
- public heatth !
This Scclion . .
v/ 2 Recorgs Birth Certificates
= D@zlong 1o Vigl
«B it Cactficatss Birth recards are available from 1818 to the present. Georgia law and
aDeatr Carticates Depa-tment of Humar Resources "egulation require that all requests for vital
« Marrage Becords recods include the signaturs cf the requestor and the proper fee. Access 1o
» Dworse Recordy bird recards is limited to
2 ietve Father
*F‘eguenty Atked « the person ramed on the certificate
Cuesiens » the parents shown on tre birth record
Featuro » an authorized legal gquardian or a2gent
L3
50 Mos e grandparents of the person ramed on the certficate
4 famalglatent s an aduit chid of the person ramed on the certificate
Narmes - GA. 2002 7 « an adult sitiing of the person named on the certficate
S cafcate snd o the spouse of the person named on the cerificate
Balt record requos
forrs Required Information
A i Clerk . . .
JJSI:.;N m’ The person ~equesting a certified copy of a birth record must provide all the
19:Trepanofovorce  information balow, a sigred request form, and a photocopy of your vald phota
ID, such as: dnvar's licerse, state ssued D card, or employer 1ssued pholc
Comact Ua |D. YoJ may provide the informaticn in three ways’
Yta. Recods
iﬂﬁi“é‘?&%ﬁgﬁ 1. By filing out a form onling, printing f, sigrirg it, and mailing it tc Vital
(404) BTD-AT0Y Records
pavisimcords 2. By downlcading the PDF version of the form, filling it out by hand and
cnh stake gh.ue mailing # to Vital Records
3. By writing ali the following information down and mailing it to Vital
Reco~ds
The following information must be provided to conduct & searen for a birh
certificate:
1. Ful name of person shown on the birh certificate (last name at birth f
female}
2. Date of Birtr (montk, day, year)
3. Place of Birth {city, county),
4, Current age
5 Sex
6. Hace (oplanal)
7. Full name of mother {irclude mother's maiden last name)
B Full narre of father
@ Relationship fo the person named on the tirth certificate requestad
1C. The number of certificates requested
Feas
Georgia law requires pre-payment before a record or a service can te
provided. Fees are not refundable after a service has been provided. Records
are sent first class mail
hitp://health statc.ga.us/programs/vitalrecords/birth.asp 57172003
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Sezrch Fee (includes one certified copy, if the record is found on
fle}

Adgcitional certifications of same record orered at the same Yyme 5500
{fuil size copies only)

31000

Multi-year search {every ten yeas or porton thereof) $10 D0

Speclal Flling Feos
{Does not inciude the $12.00 search fee which must also be included )

Delayed certificate of oirth $1G 02

Amending bitn certificates because of adoption, patemnity $10 00
acknowledgment, legitimation or coJrt order

No special filing fee is requirad during the first year of bith o amend a birth
racord. This includes all types of amendments.

Where to Raquest a Birth Certlficate
The fallowing optiens are available for requesting a birth cerlificate’
+ Mall your request, ‘ee and photocopy of valid proto 1D to:

Vital Recards
2600 Skyland Drive NE
Atlanta, GA 30118-3640

+ Request a pitr certficate in person at the state Vita! Records Office or
County Vital Records Office in the county where the birth occurred

¢ Request a birth certficate from tha Vita Crek web site

You may request a certified copy of a vitzi record by using your
Discover, MasterCard, Amencan Sxpress or Visa charge card through
the use of VtalChek services.

(The VitalChek Network Is not affiliated with tha State of Georgla,)

You may telephone VitalChek at 1-877-572-8343, saven days a week,
24 hours 3 gay ¢ ovemight delfvery is requested you will be charged
an aaditional fee for this service.

“here is a» additiona! VitalChek charge to use ycur credit card ‘o
requsst a certified copy of a vital record by telephone or fax,

+ Ncte: You may use the VitalChek fax service to request a record, but
copies of birth certificates cannot be sent by fax

s Note: it 1s not possiple to request a birh centificate via email. By law.
vital record search requests must be signed and pzil fo-.

Methods of Payment

http:/heal:h.state ga.us/programs/vitalreccrds birth.asp 9,/17.2003
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Fees may be peid by one of the following methods {make certified checks ard
mongy orders payabie to Vital Records)

o Certfied check
» Money orde-
» Credit card through ViaiChek anly

Note: Please da not send cash in the mail

CountiesfGiairicts | FrogrumaServkes [ Fublications { Hesith Datadatq - Aboyt GOPH

Fublic heath Intormation: GOPHINF Ddtdhe plate ca s
CoTmaale in Wekm srter: piwab aslerfichy stale ga Jy
Conimct: Phone Fax or Med

Privacy rolicy & Dsclgimecs

iﬁ ©2037-2005 34 Doptof Human Hegouven Div 9° Puls lc Heahh

http://health.stat2 ga. us/programs/vitalrecords/birth.asp 9/17/200%2
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT /éﬂ%j -
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

ROME DIVISION

COMMON CAUSE / GEORGIA; )
LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS )
OF GEORGIA, INC.; THE )
CENTRAL PRESBYTERIAN )
OUTREACH AND ADVOCACY )
CENTER, INC.; GEORGIA )
ASSOCIATION OF BLACK ELECTED )
OFFICIALS, INC., THE NATIONAL )
ASSOCIATION FOR THE )
ADVANCEMENT OF COLORED )
PEOPLE (NAACP), INC., through its )
Georgia State Cornference o Branches; )
GEORGIA LEGISLATIVE BLACK }
CAUCUS; CONCERNED BLACK )
CLERGY OF METROPOLITAN )
ATLANTA, INC., the following )
qualified and registered voters )
under Georgia law: )
MR. TONY WATKINS )
MRS. CLARA WILLIAMS, )

)

)

)

J

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

}

Plaintiffs,
V.

MS. EVON BILLUPS, Superintendent of
Elections for the Board of Elections and
Vater Registration for Floyd County and the
City of Rome, Georgia; MS. TRACY
BROWN, Superintendent of Elections of
Bartow County, Georgia, MR. GARY
PETTY, MS. MICHELLE HUDSON,

MS. AMANDA SPENCER, MR. RON
McKELVEY, AND MS. NINA

127597 1

T

I
Y

CIVIL ACTION
FILE NO.

v
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CRAWFORD, members of the Board of
Elections and Registration of Catoosa
County, Georgia; JUDGE JOHN PAYNE,
Superintendent of Elections of Chattooga
County, Georgia; MS. SHEA HICKS,
Superintendent of Elections for Gordon
County, Georgia; MS. JENNIFER A.
JOHNSON, Superintendent of Elections
for Polk County, Georgia; MR. SAM
LITTLE, Superintendent of Elections for
Whitfield County, Georgia; individually
and in their respective official capacities as
superintendents or members of the
elections boards in their individuai
counties, and as CLASS
REPRESENTATIVES under Fed.R.Civ.P.
22(b)(1) and (b)(2) of a class consisting of
all superintenden:s and members of city
and county boards of elections

throughout the State of Georgia; and

HON. CATHY COX, individually and in
her official capacities as Secretary of State
of Georgia anc Chair of the Georgia
Elections Board.

Defendants.

i T Ty N N B N

MOTION TO SET A PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION HEARING

Plaintitfs respectfully request that the Court enter the attached Show Cause
QOrder scheduling a hearing for a preliminary injunction in tke above-referenced

action. In support of this motion, Plaintiffs submit the following:
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Georgia’s 2005 amendment to O.C.G.A. § 21-2-417 rcquires voters to
present certain photographic identification as a pre-condition to voting. As set
forth in detail in the Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relicf. filed
herewith, the new Georgia Photo 1D requirement imposes an unauthorized,
unnecessary and undue burden on the fundamental right to vote of hundreds of
thousands of Georgia voters in violation of Art. 11, § 1, § II of the Georgia
Constitutior, the Fourteenth and Twenty-Fourth Amendments to the United S:ates
Constitution, the Civii Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 1971(a)}2)}( A} and
(a)(2)(B)), and 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

Plaintiffs seek preliminary and injunctive relief and a prompt hearing is
necessary to prevent <ne Plaintiffs and others from suffering a vielation of their
constitutional rights of the plaintiffs and a multitude of other registered voters in
Georgia who do not have the required Photo ID and will not be allowed to vote in
the November 8, 2005 election n Rome, Atlanta, and dozens of ¢ities and counties
in Georgia. A hearing at the Court’s earliest convenience is necessary *o protect
the rights of the individual Plairtifs to vote in these elections.

For the foregoing reasons, the Plaintiffs respect{ully request that the Court
snter the attached Show Cause Order and set a hearing 10 address a moticn for

preliminary injunction.

27N
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This 19" day of September 2005.

Respectfully submitted,

P @@«M

Emmet J. Bondurant { J%|i L (1“"’”‘/""" )
Georgia Bar No. 0669
David G.H. Brackett
(Georgia Bar No. 068333

BONDURANT, MIXSON & ELMORE, LLP

3900 One Atlantic Center

1201 W, Peachrree Street

Atlanta, Georgia 30309

Telephone: 404-881-4100

Facsimile: 404-88]-4111

E-mail: bonduran(@bmelaw.com

brackef@bmelaw.com

AN /

CT@_, /”,/\\

Fdward Hine \]'r
Georgia Bar No, 355775

Suite 300, Box 5511

I 11 Bridgepointe Plaza

Rome, Georgia 30162-5511
Telephone: 706-291-2531
Facsimile: 706-291-1301
E-mail: ehine[r@bellsouth.net

127457 4
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Miles J. Alexander
Georgia Bar No. 009000
Seth A. Cohen
Georgia Bar No. [75198

1100 Peachtree Street, NE

Suite 2800

Atlanta, Georgia 30309

Telephone: 404-815-6500

Facsimile: 404-815-6555

E-mail: MAlexander@kilpatrickstockton.com

SCohen@kilpatrickstockton.com

Ralph [. Knowles
Georgia Bar No, 426721

DOFFERMYRE, SHIELDS, CANFIELD,

KNOWLES & DEVINE, LLC

1355 Peachtree Street

Suite 1600

Atlanta, Georgia 30309

Telephone: 404-881-8900

Facsimile: 404-881-3007

E-mail: rnowies(@dsckd.com

(erald Weber
(Georgia Bar No. 744878
Elizabeth Liurell
Georgla Bar No. 454949
Margaret F. Garret
Georgia Bar No. 255865
ACLU OF GEORGIA
70 Fairlie Street, SW
Suite 340
Atlanta, Georgia 30303
Telephone: 404-523-6201
Facsimile: 404-577-0181
E-mail: gweberfwacluga.org
blittrelli@acluga.org
mgarrettt@aclupa.orp

127597 5
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ACLU SOUTHERN REGIONAL OFFICE

2725 Harris Tower

233 Peachtree Street, NE

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Telephone: 404-523-2721

Facsimile: 404-653-0331

E-mail: nbradleyi@aclu.org
Imcdonald@aclu.org

Jon Greenbaum

LAWYERS COMMITTEE FOR CIVIL
RIGHTS UNDER LAW

1401 New York Avenue, NW

Suite 400

Washington, 1D.C. 20605

Telephone: 202-662-8315

Facsimile: 202-628-2858

Neil Bragley

Georgia Bar No. 075123
Laughlin McDonaid
Georgia Bar No. 489550
Meredith Bell-Platts
Georgia Bar No. 048948

E-mail: jereenbaum(@lawyerscommittee.org

Kimberly Perxins

ne National Association for the Advancement

of Colored People (NAACP), Inc.
4805 M. Hope Drive
Baltimore, Maryland 21215-3297
Telephone: 410-580-5794

127557 6
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Theodore M. Shaw

Director-Counsel

Norman J. Chachkin

Debo P. Adeghile

NAACP ]egal Defense & Educational
Fund, Inc.

99 Hudson Street. 16th floor

New York, NY 10013

Telephone: 212-965-2200
Facsimile: 212-226-7592

Tisha R. Tallman

Georgia Bar No. 696949

Southeast Regional Counsel

MALDEF, The Mexican American Legal Defense & Educational Fund
4] Marietta Street, Suite 1000

Atlanta, GA 30303

Telephone: 678-559-1071

Toll free:  877-4 MALDEF (1-877-462-5333)

Facsimile: 678-559-1079

E-mail: ttallman@maldef.org

Daniel B. Kohrman

AARP FOUNDATION LITIGATION
601 E Street, N.W_, Suite A4-240
Washington DC 20049

Telephone: 202-434-2064
Facsimile: 202-434-6424

E-mail: dkohrman/aarp.org

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

127597 7
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COMMON CAUSE / GEORGIA;
LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS

OF GEORGIA, INC.; THE
CENTRAL PRESBYTERIAN
QUTREACH AND ADVOCACY
CENTER, INC.; GEORGIA
ASSOCIATION OF BLACK ELECTED
OFFICIALS, INC,, THE NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION FOR THE
ADVANCEMENT OF COLORED
PEOPLE (NAACP), INC., through its
Georgiz State Conference of Branches;
GEORGIA LEGISLATIVE BLACK
CAUCUS, CONCERNED BLACK
CLERGY OF METROPOILITAN
ATLANTA, INC., the following
qualified and registered voters

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
under Georgia law: )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

ROME DIVISION

MR. TONY WATKINS
MRS. CLARA WILLIAMS,

Plaintiffs,
V.

MS. EVON BILLUPS, Superintendent of
Elections for the Board of Elections and
Voter Registration for Floyd County and the
City of Rome, Georgia; MS. TRACY
BROWN, Superintendent of Elections of
Bartow County, Georgia; MR. GARY
PETTY, MS. MICHELLE HUDSON,

MS. AMANDA SPENCER, MR, RON
McKELVEY, AND MS. NINA

127558 1

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

i
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CRAWFORD, members of the Board of )
Elections and Registration of Catoosa )
County, Georgia; JUDGE JOHN PAYNE, )
Supcrintendent of Elections of Chattooga )
County, Georgia, MS. SHEA HICKS, )
Superintendent of Elections for Gordon )
County, Georgia; MS. JENNIFER A. )
JOHNSON, Superintendent of Flections )
for Polk County, Georgia; MR. SAM )
LITTLE, Superintendent of Elections for )
Whitfield County, Georgia; individually )
and in their respective official capacities as )
superintendents or members of the )
elections boards in their individual )
counties, and as CLLASS )
REPRESENTATIVES under Fed.R.Civ.P. )
22(b)(1}and (b)(2) of a class consisting of )
all superintendents and members of city )
and county hoards of elections )
throughout tne State of Georgia: and )

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

HON. CATHY COX, individually anc in
her official capacities as Secretary of State
of Georgia and Chair of the Georgla
Elections Board.

Defendants.

ORDER TQ SHOW CAUSE

After reviewirg the Complaint filed in the above-referenced action and the
P.aintiffs’ motion to set a hearing on a motion for preliminary injunction, the Court

hereby Orders the following;

127598
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1. Defendants are hereby ordered to show cause why preliminary

injunctive relief should not be granted at a hearing on _

, 2005, beginning at a.m./p.m., in Courtroom

, at the United States Courthouse in Rome, Georgia.

2. Plaintiffs are hereby Ordered to serve a copy of this Order, along with

the Complaint on the Attorney General for the State of Georgia.

SO ORDERED, this

Prepared By:

M@n

Emmet J. Bondurast 4

Georgia Bar No. 066900

David G.H. Brackett

Georgia Bar No. 068353

Bondurant, Mixson & Elmore, LLP

3900 One Atlantic Center

1201 W. Peachtree Street

Atlanta, Georgia 30309

Telephone: 404-881-4100

Facsimile; 404-88:-4111

E-mails: bondurant@bmelaw.com
brackett@bmelaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

127568

day of , 2005,

,Judge
United States District Court for the
Northem District of Georgia, Rome Division
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